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Event Date 

RFP Release Date 8/28/2018 

Deadline for Submission of Questions 9/5/2018 

Issuance of Response to Submitted Questions 9/10/2018 

PROPOSAL DUE DATE 9/24/2018 at 2:00 PM EST 

Phone Interviews On or about 9/26-10/2 
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Debriefing Request Deadline No later than 10 business days 
from date of award announcement 

Proposal Protest Deadline See Bid Protest Policy located in 
Section 5.5 

Contract Start Date 1/1/2019 

By signing below, the bidder attests to receiving and responding to the amendment number 

indicated above.   

FIRM NAME: ________________________ 
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Questions and Answers 

Q.1:  Section 1.2 OPWDD Objective – page 4.

The RFP describes nine settings (e.g. family care) in which OPWDD services are 
provided. Are there any settings or service providers that will be excluded from the 
sample in year 1?  

A.1:   All settings and providers may be included in the sample. No specific programs,
settings or providers are excluded from the sample. The NCI random sample 
includes adults over 18 years old, receiving at least one service (besides case 
management), that have billed for service at least once in the prior 3months.  

Q.2:  Section 3. Sample Management – page 8.

Can you provide more information regarding the communication with participants and 
potentially legal guardians?  Will the Contractor be responsible for the mailing of 
notification letters to participants and/or legal guardians, explaining the project and 
alerting them to the possibility of a phone call from an interviewer? 

A.2:  The contractor will be responsible for contacting each participant (or

guardian/proxy) to schedule the in-person interview. The pre-survey will identify 

if the person has a guardian, or other person that should be contacted to 

coordinate the interview. A notification letter is not required; however, this may 

be included as part of the contractors proposed workplan.   

Q.3:  Section 3. NCI Surveyors -  page 8.

• Will the contractor be responsible for translation of any materials?

• Who is responsible for interpreter services?  If the Contractor is responsible for
interpreter services, does OPWDD have preferred/recommended vendors?

A.3   The contractor is not responsible for translating the NCI Survey, this document

will be provided in multiple languages. The contractor is responsible for 

coordinating interpreter services as needed. OPWDD will assist (when possible) 

to identify local resources available for interpreter services. Historically, when 

possible, interviews have been conducted with the support of proxies/staff 

familiar with the person’s communication preferences or preferred language.  

Q.4:   Section 3. NCI Surveyor Training – page 9.

Page 9 refers to surveyors as mandated reporters. Can you describe the required 
abuse, neglect, and exploitation reporting process in New York State that should be 
followed? 
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A.4    Mandated reporters can call the toll-free VPCR (Vulnerable Persons Central 

Registry) 24-hour hotline, there is also a web form, as well as a mobile 

application, that are available for reporting abuse and neglect. For more 

information, visit the Justice Center’s website at:  

https://www.justicecenter.ny.gov/training/mandated-reporting 
 

Q.5:  Section 3. NCI Scope of Services – page 10. 

Will verbal or written consent be required prior to interview participation? If written 
consent, can you describe the anticipated written consent process? 
 

A.5    OPWDD requires the interviewer to obtain verbal agreement from the participant 

prior to starting the survey. If the participant is unable to provide their consent, 

the interviewer may obtain agreement from a guardian or proxy. Participation is 

voluntary and the person may decline to participate at any time.  

Q.6:  Section 3. NCI Scope of Services – page 10. 

There is no mention of legal guardians’ role in the scheduling process. What are the 

protocols for consent to participate in this project when legal guardianship has been 

awarded? 

A.6:   If a legal guardian is identified by the CCO in the pre-survey, the legal guardian 

should be contacted to obtain consent to move forward with scheduling and 

conducting the interview.  When possible, the NCI project uses a verbal 

agreement from the individual selected. The survey has no impact on services or 

service planning and the data is used only in the aggregate.  

Q.7:  Section 3. NCI Scope of Services – page 10. 

How will OPWDD communicate with provider agencies to inform them of the NCI 

process and the Contractor potentially contacting them for pre-survey and background 

information?  

A.7:  OPWDD will train and communicate with the CCOs in advance of the NCI project 

to outline their roles and responsibilities. The CCOs will be required to provide 

the pre-survey and background information electronically through the ODESA 

system. The contractor will work with the CCO to facilitate successful data entry.  

Q.8:   Section 3. NCI Scope of Services – page 10. 
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Can background information be collected after the completion of interviews for only 

those individuals who were recruited to reduce the burden on CCOs and potentially 

service providers? 

A.8:   Yes. OPWDD would consider this process for the NCI project. This process  

should be described in the Work Plan.   

Q.9:    Section 3. NCI Scope of Services – page 10. 

Is there an IRB process associated with the project?  

A.9:    No. There is not an IRB process associated with this project.  

Q.10:  Section 3. NCI Scope of Services – page 11. 

The RFP specifies that CCOs will be trained on and be familiar with the NCI project in 
advance of project start date.  Does this mean that OPWDD will provide training prior 
to January 1, 2019? What are the training responsibilities for the Contractor? Will the 
Contractor need to provide in-person training? 
 

A.10:  OPWDD will communicate with the CCOs in advance of the project start date. 
OPWDD will provide an overview of the NCI project, communicate data entry 
expectations and provide training on the NCI process, pre-survey and 
background information sections of the survey.  The contractor will need to 
assist the CCOs as needed, this will include ensuring they have access to the 
ODESA for data entry and have the information required for data entry. OPWDD 
will help facilitate the partnership between CCOs and the contractor, 
specifically in the startup phase of year one. In person trainings will not likely 
be required, however ongoing communication with the CCO will be needed.  

 

Q.11:  Section 3. NCI Scope of Services – page 11. 

This section notes that the OPWDD Project Coordinator will conduct shadow 
interviews throughout the project year with surveyors. For coordination purposes, 
approximately how many interviews are anticipated? 
 

A.11:  Based on experience of the interviewer team and proposed quality assurance 

strategy, the project coordinator may choose to observe every interviewer at 

least once.  

Q.12:  Section 3. NCI Scope of Services – page 11. 

 How many state-specific questions will OPWDD plan to add to the survey?  

A.12:   OPWDD anticipates adding no more than 15 additional state specific data  

elements across the entire survey. In 2018 OPWDD included 3 NYS specific 
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elements to the presurvey/background sections and 12 items to the In-Person 

survey.  

Q.13:   Section 6.12. Proposal Requirements.  

What is purpose of the redaction (Electronic: redacted and non-redacted Memory 

Sticks) in the technical proposal?  

A.13:   The redacted material should reflect information your firm deems confidential 

or proprietary pursuant to Section 6.10 of the RFP.  If your firm does not have 

any confidential or proprietary information included in your proposal, please 

indicate so in your response, as a redacted version is not necessary. 

Q.14:   General.  

        What is the budget, or budget range for this project? 

A.14:    A budget has not been established for this project. 

Q.15:   General. 

How many contract terms has the incumbent been serving as contractor for this 

project?  

     A.15:   There is not an incumbent for this work, as the OPWDD has not previously bid 

out for a statewide NCI Coordinator.  Historically, OPWDD contracted with 4 

Regional Coordinators and hired individual surveyors in each region.    

Q.16:   General. 

        Is the contracting agency satisfied with the services of the incumbent? 

A.16:    Please see answer provided to Q.15 

Q.17:    Attachment 2 Pricing Proposal. 

The responding contractor is asked to make guesstimates on the number of 

unsuccessful in person interviews to anticipate.  Do you have historical data 

regarding this that can help with pricing assumptions? 

     A.17:    OPWDD provides an oversample to guarantee the contractor has enough 

cases to meet their target. Cases are removed during the initial information 

gathering phase (back ground and pre- survey) as a result of outdated 

information and refusals during scheduling. Typically, fewer than 5% of cases 

result in unsuccessful interviews, defined as the interview is scheduled and 

the person either declines or does not show up.  
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     Q.18:   Section 3. Scope of Work, Overview of NCI Survey, Pre-Survey Information. 

Your website indicates there are 7 new CCO’s since July 2018.  Do they all have  

experience with NCI’s?   

 A.18:    CCOs do not have experience with the NCI project. In prior years, OPWDD 

worked with Medicaid Service Coordinators to collect background and pre-

survey data. CCOs started in July 2018, this will be the first cycle working with 

the CCOs. OPWDD will train the CCOs on NCI in advance of the project and will 

provide support to the contractor throughout year one to facilitate a successful 

process.  

     Q.19:   Section 3. Scope of Work, Sample Management.  

Based on historical data, approximately what % of the contact information is not 

usable? Does this % run consistently throughout all geo regions? 

A.19:   We do not have this information available. In addition, historical data is not 

predictive of future results, as all information will now come from CCOs and 

not MSC agencies.   

     Q.20:    Section 3. Scope of Work, Sample Management.  

Would the contractor be responsible for providing its own equipment for working with 

the non-verbal interviewees?  

 A.20:   The contractor would be responsible for making the necessary 

accommodations to complete the survey using the communication 

preferences of the individual being interviewed. This would not require 

providing any equipment. It does require that the necessary proxies and 

supports are present for the interview. 

     Q.21:   Section 3. Scope of Work, Sample Management.  

Can you provide more detailed information on the role, responsibilities and liabilities 

of Mandated Reporter?  

A.21:   Mandated reporters are required to report reportable incidents involving 

vulnerable persons. Detailed overview of their role and responsibilities can be 

found on the Justice Center’s Website: 

https://www.justicecenter.ny.gov/sites/default/files/documents/ReportingRequi

rementsForHumanServicesProfessionals.pdf 

      Q.22:   Section 3. Scope of Work, Sample Management.  

https://www.justicecenter.ny.gov/sites/default/files/documents/ReportingRequirementsForHumanServicesProfessionals.pdf
https://www.justicecenter.ny.gov/sites/default/files/documents/ReportingRequirementsForHumanServicesProfessionals.pdf
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Is everything under “each interviewer must meet the following eligibility requirement” 

an expense we incorporate into the rates? 

      A.22:   Yes, the cost must be all inclusive, per completed survey. 

      Q.23:    Section 3. Scope of Work, NCI Survey Training. 

a) Is the “costs related to the staff’s participation in the training” all to be 

incorporated into the rates?   

b) Are their guidelines for per diem rates?    

      A.23:    a) Yes.      

 b) OPWDD will only pay the all-inclusive rates per completed survey, as 

provided for on Attachment 2 – Pricing Proposal. 

      Q. 24:   Section 3. Scope of Work, NCI Survey Training.  

Surveyor Requirements- What is the turnaround time for this and other Client 

approvals?  

A.24:  The training includes 1 full day (8hrs) in person training. Competency will be 

demonstrated at the training through mock interviews. In addition, some 

materials/required trainings will be provided electronically for interviewers to 

review independently, this can be completed at the interviewer’s pace and 

should not take more than 3 hours in total.  

      Q.25:    Section 3. Scope of Work, NCI Scope of Services. 

Who is responsible for making the logistical arrangements for the required supports 

or proxies?   

     A.25:   The contractor is responsible for coordinating with the participant or 

family/proxy to arrange for any accommodations or staff to be present during 

the interview.  Historically, the interviewer coordinated the accommodations 

and proxies at the time of scheduling the interview.  

      Q.26:  Section 3. Scope of Work, NCI Scope of Services. 

Can the randomly selected interviewees have participated in NCI surveys in the 

past? 

      A.26:   Yes.  

      Q.27:   Section 6. Proposal Requirements. 
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          Can you clarify further how the inclusion of options would impact a base proposal?  

      A.27:  The inclusion of options will not impact the base proposal.  Since options were 

not specified by the OPWDD, they will not be included in the evaluation. 

      Q.28:  General.   

Will CCO participation in the NCI In Person Survey project voluntary or required? If it                                                                          

is voluntary, how will OPWDD help to lay the groundwork to ensure full and timely 

participation and cooperation from each CCO? 

      A.28:   CCOs are required to complete the background and pre-survey sections of the 

NCI Survey. Training and education will be provided to CCOs in advance of the 

project start date.  OPWDD will outline their roles and expectations in the 

project, this will lay the groundwork to ensure participation in the NCI project.  

OPWDD will facilitate the initial communications between the CCOs and the 

contractor. OPWDD is prepared to provide additional support as needed to 

ensure success in year 1.  

Q.29:   General.  

Contract requirements for subcontractors are set forth in the RFP.  Please clarify the    

contract requirements (including required descriptions and attachments) for joint 

submissions.  

 

A.29:    When submitting a Joint Proposal or using a subcontractor, the following should 

be submitted with the Proposal:  

• Two references for each firm. 

• Disclosure of litigation for each firm, pursuant to Section 6.11 of the RFP. 

• Appendix E – Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire (if valued over $100,000). 

• Appendix N – Vendor Assurance of No Conflict of Interest. 

• Proof of Insurance coverage as stated in Appendix Q – Insurance 
Requirements: 

“Should the Contractor engage a Sub-contractor, the 
Contractor shall endeavor to impose the insurance 
requirements of this document on the Sub-contractor, as 
applicable. Required insurance limits should be determined 
commensurate with the work of the Sub-contractor. Proof 
thereof shall be supplied to the OPWDD.” 

• Describe the role of the joint proposer or subcontractor in your Technical 
Proposal response to Section 4 of the RFP. 

 
Q.30:   General. 
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NYS is increasing the minimum wage in December. What guidelines would 

bidders/vendors need to abide by to be compliant?  

A.30:   The successful bidder must comply with all Federal, State and local laws, rules  

and regulations and include any anticipated costs in their price per completed 

survey. 

Q.31:   General.   

What is the planned payment structure of the contract to the awardee? (e.g., will there 

be an advance?).  

A.31:   On a monthly basis, Contractor shall submit invoices for completed surveys, at 

the per survey rate set forth in the Pricing Proposal. Supporting documentation 

for each survey must be included. Such documentation may be in the form of 

the monthly report provided to the OPWDD’s Project Director, if the report is 

sufficiently detailed. 

 

Payment under the Contract will be in accordance with New York State Prompt 
Payment Law (Article 11-A of the New York State Finance Law). Payment for 
services will be made upon completion of the services, in accordance with the 
terms of this RFP, and upon receipt by the OPWDD of a proper invoice, in 
accordance with Section 179-a(5) of New York State Finance Law. 
 
Itemized invoices shall be submitted as a PDF email attachment at the frequency 
stated in this section and shall be directed to the New York State Business 
Service Center to accountspayable@ogs.ny.gov. 
 

 Q.32:  General.  

The RFP requires resumes and the Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire to be 

submitted for anyone who is identified as a bidder who will be a part of the project and 

is expected to receive more than $100,000 over the 5-year contract term. Please clarify 

if anything else needs to be submitted with the proposal for people who fall in this 

category.   

A.32:  Please see the answer to Q.29.  

       Q.33:  General.  

Is OPWDD intending to supply hard copy NCI survey booklets or should this 

expense be built into the price proposal? 

       A.33:   OPWDD will not provide hard copy NCI survey booklets. OPWDD will provide 

the survey electronically in PDF and MS Word. The contractor may choose to 
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print copies for surveyors to take into the field, or surveyors can take tablets 

or laptops into the field to access the online portal.   Any expense relating to 

execution of the surveys should be built into the price proposal. OPWDD will 

provide materials related to NCI training, including the NCI Adult IPS 

handbook.   

Q.34:  General.  

Is there a cap NYS on administrative overhead that will apply to this RFP? If so, what 

is it?  

A.34:  The rates must be provided as all-inclusive, per survey costs and Attachment 2 

– Pricing Proposal must be used.  There is no breakdown or limit to the types of 

costs that may be considered when calculating the per completed survey cost. 

Q.35:  General.  

 Is it possible to extend the due date for the response to the RFP? In our experience, 

more time is usually provided to submit a proposal.   

A.35:  Please see the revised Calendar of Events  

Q.36:  a) Is there an incumbent? 

b) If yes, please identify incumbent and contract number. 
 

A.36:  Please see the answer to Q.15 

 
Q.37:  Please provide job description for the Interviewer positions. 

A.37:  The contractor will determine the full job description for the interviewers based 

on their workplan and strategy to complete the project. Typically, the 

interviewers are responsible for scheduling & conducting the full interview and 

data entry.  

This typically includes:   

• Reviewing the background/pre-survey sections to become familiar with 
the individual selected. 

• Use the Pre-survey to contact the person (or proxy) to schedule the 
interview at a convenient time and location (person’s home, day program, 
coffee shop, etc.) Coordinate with proxy or staff person if the person 
would like them present.  

• Travel to the location and conduct the interview 

• Review the survey for completeness. 

• Data enter information gathered at the interview into the ODESA tool.  
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Q.38:  Please provide a list of the cities where the surveys will be conducted. 
 

A.38:  Interviews will be conducted across NYS. The entire state is included in the 
survey and interviewers are required to schedule interviews for locations 
convenient for the interviewee. Interviews may take place across NYS in both 
urban and rural areas.  

 
Q.39:  Will drug screening be required?  If yes please provide the screening requirements 

(i.e. 5 or 10 panel) 
 

A.39   No. 

 
Q.40:  Historically what is the percentage of successful completion of surveys? 
 

A.40:  The “in-person” interview portion of the survey is completed successfully in 

most cases. Rarely a participant will decline the survey during the interview. 

Occasionally, the participant will cancel the interview on short notice or not 

show up at the agreed upon location at the time of the scheduled interview.  

 

Historically, the Regional Coordinators would use their oversample if a 

provider was not responsive in providing pre-survey/background information, 

the individual selected was not responsive to requests for scheduling 

interviews, the individual selected was unable to be contacted.  

 
Q.41:  Is the work performed only from Jan – June?  Is there any work performed July – 

Dec? 
 
A.41:  The work is typically performed Jan-June, the data entry must be completed by 

June 30th. The contractor may begin work prior to January if they choose and 
based on mutual agreement with OPWDD. 

 
Q.42:  For Non-verbal requirements, will the contractor be able to provide a form they can 

complete (written or web based)? 
 
A.42: The survey must be completed in-person. The pre-survey section will identify 

the individual’s preferred method of communication and any accommodations 
the person may require. The surveyor will need to coordinate the necessary 
accommodations, such as having a proxy, an interpreter, or a person familiar 
with the person’s communication style present. Some individuals participating 
in the survey may use a communication device, voice amplifier, gestures, 
facial expressions to communicate.   

 
Q.43:  Will OPWDD be providing computers and internet access to the surveyors to enter 

data? 



RFP C0SCO0019   NCI Coordinator 2019  Attachment 1 

 

Executive Office 

44 Holland Avenue, Albany, New York 12229-0001 │ 866-946-9733 │www.opwdd.ny.gov 

 
 

 
A.43   No. OPWDD will not provide computers or internet access to surveyors.  

 
Q.44:  Will any of the surveyors be interviewing children? 
 
A.44:  No. OPWDD administers the Adult In person survey, all individuals surveyed 

must will be at least 18 years old.  

 
Q.45:  Pricing Proposal: 

Question:  How would OPWDD like implementation costs listed?  Ideally a 1 time 
cost is more cost effective. However the Pricing Proposal is set up to price by 
number of survey therefore the implementation cost built into this pricing model 
would reflect re-occurring.   

  
A.45:  Attachment 2 – Pricing Proposal must be utilized to provide pricing.  Pricing 

must be provided as all-inclusive, per survey.  Alternative pricing proposals will 
be disqualified. 

 
Q.46:  Page 8 – NCI Surveyors 

“staff a team of interviewers” 
Question:  How many surveyors/interviewers were used the previous year?   
What is the historical number of surveyors / interviewers? 

 
A.46:  In 2018 the NCI project had 23 interviewers statewide, this number is 

consistent with prior years.  The number of interviewers required is dependent 
on their availability and level of productivity. In past years, interviewers were 
hired based on geographic availability, ensuring that each region of the state 
had coverage.  The largest volume of surveys will be conducted in the NYC/ 
Long Island Region, thus requiring more interviewers.   

 
Q.47:  Page 8 – NCI Surveyors 

“non-English speaking and/or non-verbal individuals,” 
 a)  What languages are required? 
 b)  Can the contractor use a computer program / app for translations? 
 c) Will contractor need to provide sign language? 

 
A.47:  

a)  OPWDD does not exclude participants based on language preferences.  
Accommodations will need to be made for a variety of languages, this may 
include bringing in a translator, interpreter or a person familiar with the 
person’s communication style and preferences.  

b)  Yes, providing it is acceptable to the person being interviewed.  
c)  The contractor will need to make accommodations for sign language. This 

may include coordinating with an interpreter.  
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Q.48:  Page 9 – eligibility requirements:   
 * Verifying and validating the personal data, residence data and family data. 
Question:  Please clarify detailing what is meant by personal data, residence data 
and family data 

 
A.48:  The RFP Scope of Work, NCI Surveyors section, paragraph 3 is hereby revised 

to remove the requirement of “Verifying and validating personal data, 
residence data and family data”, and revises #1, bullet 4. 

 
Therefore, the section is revised to read as follows: 

 
Additionally, each interviewer must meet the following eligibility requirements: 
 

1. The Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring that each surveyor have 
fingerprinting and a Criminal Background Check that includes: 

 

• Performing a Criminal Background Check at the state, federal, and 
county level for criminal records. 

• Using commercially available and/or proprietary databases to 
investigate the employee’s general background for derogatory or 
negative information relating to the employee’s character and fitness. 
The investigation must include, but is not limited to, sex offender 
status, terrorist watch list status, OFAC status, and news sources. 

• Performing analysis of investigative findings and identify issues of 
concern. 

• The Contractor must submit an investigative summary to the OPWDD 
prior to assignment of the surveyor to begin work which shall indicate 
whether there were any adverse findings, and the severity of the 
finding. 

 
     The cost of the background investigations are the responsibility of the 

Contractor. 
 
2. The surveyors will also be subject to verification against the NYS Justice 

Center Staff Exclusion list, and State and Federal Medicaid Exclusion Lists.  
These checks will be performed by the OPWDD.  

 
Q.49:  Page 9 – eligibility requirements: 

* Performing analysis of investigative findings and identify issues of concern. 
Question:  Please clarify what parameters are required as response to the analysis of 
investigative findings and identify issues of concern. 

 
A.49:  Please see the answer and revisions in Q.48.  
 
Q.50:  Page 9 – NCI Surveyor Training 

“The Contractor will be responsible for all costs related to its staff’s participation in 
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the training.” 
Question: Please clarify what is meant by “all costs” (i.e. travel costs…)  

 
A.50: The bidder is responsible for including any associated costs involved with 

employee training in their bid price per completed survey.  Training costs may 
include such things as employee salary, travel costs such as fuel, tolls, parking, 
etc.  

 
Q.51:  Page 10 – NCI Scope of Services 

statewide project target (600 surveys in year 1)  
Question:  Please clarify if 600 surveys means fully completed surveys or number 
conducted surveys. 

 
A.51: The target refers to the number of completed surveys. In year one, 600 surveys 

must be completed.  

 
Q.52:  Page 10 – NCI Scope of Services 

“oversample and include at least three times the target number of surveys.” 
Question:  please clarify will oversample consist of 1800 surveys? 

 
A.52: The oversample will include approximately 1800 cases. OPWDD pulls a sample 

of 1800 potential participants (cases) and provides it to the CCOs and the 
Contractor. The contractor must manage the case list and complete 600 
surveys. OPWDD provides a large oversample to ensure the target can be 
reached in the event of refusals, outdated and missing contact information. 
The contractor must complete 600 surveys out of the total sample.  

 
Q.53:  Page 10 – NCI Scope of Services 

“manage the sample per defined protocols” 
Question:  Please provide the define protocols. 

 
A.53:  The defined protocols are the process for handling the sample and 

administering cases, these protocols will be discussed in detail prior to the 

start of the project.  

The sample will be divided across regions and targets will be identified for 

each region (totally 600 in year 1). The sample will be in specific order, the 

contractor must work through the sample in specific order to ensure the 

random sample is maintained. A person may be removed from the sample for 

specific documented reasons, such as they are no longer receiving services or 

declined to participate. As cases are removed, the contractor will use the 

oversample.   The contractor may not remove cases for convenience, the 

sample must be adhered to.  
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When scheduling interviews, the contractor must make a significant effort to 

schedule the interview, they must make at least 3 attempts to contact the 

person before removing them from the sample. Additional protocols (of a 

similar type) may be established prior to the start of the contract.  

Q.54:  Page 11 – NCI Scope of Services 
“The Contractor will need to provide support and training to the 7 CCOs on an as 
needed basis.”” 
  a) What are the specifics for the support and training? 
  b) How many hours were spent on training the CCOs? 

A.54: 
a)  Contractor will need to assist CCOs with accessing user accounts through 

the ODESA system, assigning cases and data entry.  
b)  OPWDD will introduce the CCOs to the NCI project and provide an overview 

of their expectations as it relates to the NCI project.  Training is in design 

and has not yet been provided. 

Q.55:  Page 14 – bullet j 
“j. Collect and store survey data.” 
Question:  How long do the surveys and survey data need to be stored?  

 
A.55:  All data and materials must be turned over to OPWDD at the close of each 

cycle. Surveys completed on paper must be destroyed at the close of the 
project.  

 
Q.56:  Business Participation Opportunities for MWBEs (page 94) states the following: 

For purposes of this solicitation, the OPWDD hereby establishes an overall goal of 
30% for MWBE participation, 30% for New York State-certified Minority-owned 
Business Enterprise (“MBE”) participation and 30% for New York State-certified 
Women-owned Business Enterprise (“WBE”) participation (based on the current 
availability of MBEs and WBEs). 
Question:  per the above statement will this contract require 30% MBE and 30% 
WBE?  

 

A.56: The overall MWBE goal for this RFP is 30%.   

Paragraph 2 of Appendix J - CONTRACTOR REQUIREMENTS AND 
PROCEDURES FOR PARTICIPATION BY NEW YORK STATE-CERTIFIED 
MINORITY AND WOMEN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES AND EQUAL 
EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES FOR MINORITY GROUP MEMBERS AND 
WOMEN is hereby revised to state the following: 

 
Business Participation Opportunities for MWBEs 
For purposes of this solicitation, the OPWDD hereby establishes an overall goal of 
30% for MWBE participation. A contractor (“Contractor”) on any contract resulting from 
this procurement (“Contract”) must document its good faith efforts to provide 
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meaningful participation by MWBEs as subcontractors and suppliers in the 
performance of the Contract. To that end, by submitting a  response to this RFP, the 
respondent agrees that the OPWDD may withhold payment pursuant to any Contract 
awarded as a result of this RFP pending receipt of the required MWBE documentation. 
The directory of MWBEs can be viewed at: https://ny.newnycontracts.com. For 
guidance on how the OPWDD will evaluate a Contractor’s “good faith efforts,” refer to 
5 NYCRR § 142.8. 

 

 


